

This brochure is intended to assist consultants using the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) files as part of studies undertaken to comply with federal and state historic preservation regulations. It provides an overview of the information included in the SHPO files and a step-by-step checklist for searching for properties that are listed in or eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.

Access and Availability

The SHPO historic properties files are available by request through the Research Room at the Archives and History Center. This facility is open Monday-Friday, 8:30 a.m. to 5 p.m., except for state holidays.

Research room staff are responsible only for making SHPO files available. They do not interpret information on historic properties or advise consultants on specific projects. Consultants requiring assistance should schedule an appointment with an appropriate member of the SHPO staff by calling 803-896-6178 or by visiting <http://shpo.sc.gov/contactus.htm>.

Select SHPO historic property file information is also available on our website under “Historic Properties” <http://shpo.sc.gov/properties/> or by visiting the weblinks cited in this brochure.

Information Included in the SHPO Files

The SHPO files are mainly comprised of two sets of data: properties that are listed in the National Register and properties that have been recorded by survey and cultural resource management (CRM) projects.

National Register Files

The National Register files include information on properties that are listed individually or as part of a historic district. The files include the nomination forms, photographs, and maps. The paper files sometimes include copies of historical sources. You can use the National Register paper files by requesting them in the Research Room, or you can view scanned nomination forms and select photographs online at <http://www.nationalregister.sc.gov/nrlinks.htm>. A compiled list of National Register properties in South Carolina organized by county and date of listing is available in the Research Room and online at <http://shpo.sc.gov/NR/rdonlyres/7B54CC8A-DA93-467C-B881-22F40378CC7A/0/hpnrhistoricplaces.pdf>.

Maps for National Register historic districts are available online at <http://shpo.sc.gov/properties/register/hdmaps.htm>. You can also use the Archives’ Online Records Index <http://www.archivesindex.sc.gov/> to search National Register records by location, individual, or topic.

The quality of National Register nominations varies greatly. Many early nominations are limited in detail, and property boundaries may be vague. Some historic district nominations lack a comprehensive inventory of contributing and non-contributing properties. Nominations for properties listed in recent years tend to be better documented and typically include greater historical and architectural detail. In general, however, the nomination for any listed property includes sufficient information for consultants conducting review and compliance studies to determine if a project will affect historic properties.

Survey Files

The survey files include information on historic properties documented by various projects conducted since the early 1970s. The files are organized by county and date of project and generally include a project report, historic property survey forms, photographs, and maps. Summary information about survey projects is found in the *Finding Aid to Records of the Survey of Historic Properties*, available in the Research Room and online at <http://shpo.sc.gov/properties/survey/surveyindex.htm>. Select countywide and municipal survey reports are available online with other historic background studies at <http://shpo.sc.gov/properties/register/historiccontexts.htm>.

Information included in the survey files varies in quality and scope of coverage. Projects conducted from the mid-1970s through the mid-1980s focused on surveying historically significant small towns, particularly downtown and older residential districts, and properties of obvious significance in rural areas. Beginning in 1986, the SHPO began conducting comprehensive countywide surveys in accordance with current methodological standards. The quality of documentation and coverage of recent survey projects is generally good, but in some cases important properties may have been overlooked. Properties located in inaccessible areas, for example, may not

have been recorded. The survey files also include information from surveys conducted for review and compliance purposes from the late 1980s to the present.

Searching for Information: A Checklist

Consultants should use a three-step process for searching SHPO files:

1: Search ArchSite <http://archsite.cas.sc.edu/> ArchSite/, the online Geographic Information System (GIS) maintained by the SHPO and the South Carolina Institute of Archaeology and Anthropology (SCIAA).

ArchSite data may be accessed at a computer workstation in the Research Room (registration required). ArchSite includes three applications designed for specific users: Public View, Subscription View, and Site Editor View. More information regarding accessing ArchSite can be found at <http://shpo.sc.gov/revcomp/culture/> and http://archsite.cas.sc.edu/sciaainfo/subscription_overview.htm.

The following data layers are available on ArchSite:

- ◆ National Register-listed properties
- ◆ Properties determined eligible for the National Register (surveyed after 1990)
- ◆ Areas surveyed for cultural resources (primarily since 1998)
- ◆ Countywide historic architectural survey data (completed since late 1980s)
- ◆ Archaeological sites
- ◆ Civil War earthworks thematic survey data

2: If ArchSite indicates historic properties in or near the project area, check the Survey and National Register files for more detailed information about the historic properties.

If National Register properties were identified, ask to see the National Register files in the Research Room or view them online at <http://www.nationalregister.sc.gov/nrlinks.htm>. If surveyed properties were identified, proceed to the following step.

3: Check the Finding Aid to Records of the Survey of Historic Properties.

The *Finding Aid*, which is an index to surveys arranged by county, includes brief information about each survey conducted. It is available in the Research

Room and online at <http://shpo.sc.gov/properties/survey/surveyindex.htm>. You will need to check the *Finding Aid* — even if no sites were found in ArchSite — to determine if survey material exists



for the project area. If the *Finding Aid* indicates that there was a survey in the project area you should ask to see the project report, site forms, and maps for the survey.

A Word of Warning

Consultants should bear the following in mind when searching the SHPO files: simply because the files contain no information on National Register-listed or surveyed properties in a specific area does not mean that no historically significant properties exist in that specific area. Most parts of the state have not been covered by a comprehensive survey, and in many counties few properties have been listed in the National Register. Fieldwork is often necessary to determine if historic properties are located in or near an area that will be affected by a project.

Considerations in Using SHPO Files

- ◆ Historic properties in many parts of the state have never been surveyed. Less than half of the state's counties have been comprehensively surveyed. For many areas, the SHPO files contain limited or virtually no information.
- ◆ Much of the information in the SHPO files is no longer current. A property determined eligible for the National Register ten years ago, for example, may have since lost its integrity and historical character, rendering it ineligible. At the same time, properties that were less than fifty years old at the time of a survey may have since become eligible for the National Register. Fieldwork is often necessary to confirm, update, or add to the information in the SHPO files.
- ◆ Properties included in the SHPO survey files are not necessarily significant. To be surveyed, a property must be at least fifty years old and retain some of its historic appearance. No other requirements exist. Most surveyed properties are not eligible for the National Register of Historic Places.
- ◆ Data from the SHPO files should not be publicized without consent. Looting of archaeological sites for profit and vandalism of abandoned buildings are serious, ongoing problems.
- ◆ Data from the SHPO files should not be redistributed. Properties are continually added to the survey files, typically at a rate of 1,000 annually, and new listings to the National Register are made frequently. Consultants are responsible for checking the SHPO files for the most current information.
- ◆ The SHPO files mainly include information on above-ground properties. CRM reports and archaeological site forms are available at the South Carolina Institute of Archaeology and Anthropology at 1321 Pendleton Street in Columbia, SC, telephone 803-777-8170 or <http://www.cas.sc.edu/SCIAA/>.

September 2009

**Consultant's
Guide to Survey
& National
Register Files**

**State Historic
Preservation Office
(SHPO)**
<http://shpo.sc.gov>

**South Carolina
Department of
Archives &
History**
<http://scdah.sc.gov>

THE South Carolina Archives & History Center
HISTORY & HERITAGE For All Generations

Map labels include: Hollywood, Baptist Hill, Wesley Cern, High Sch, Meggett, Mud, AIR LINE, ROAD, 703-702, 704, 705, 705-1, 701, 702, 703, 704, 705, 706, 707, 708, 709, 710, 711, 712, 713, 714, 715, 716, 717, 718, 719, 720, 721, 722, 723, 724, 725, 726, 727, 728, 729, 730, 731, 732, 733, 734, 735, 736, 737, 738, 739, 740, 741, 742, 743, 744, 745, 746, 747, 748, 749, 750, 751, 752, 753, 754, 755, 756, 757, 758, 759, 760, 761, 762, 763, 764, 765, 766, 767, 768, 769, 770, 771, 772, 773, 774, 775, 776, 777, 778, 779, 780, 781, 782, 783, 784, 785, 786, 787, 788, 789, 790, 791, 792, 793, 794, 795, 796, 797, 798, 799, 800, 801, 802, 803, 804, 805, 806, 807, 808, 809, 810, 811, 812, 813, 814, 815, 816, 817, 818, 819, 820, 821, 822, 823, 824, 825, 826, 827, 828, 829, 830, 831, 832, 833, 834, 835, 836, 837, 838, 839, 840, 841, 842, 843, 844, 845, 846, 847, 848, 849, 850, 851, 852, 853, 854, 855, 856, 857, 858, 859, 860, 861, 862, 863, 864, 865, 866, 867, 868, 869, 870, 871, 872, 873, 874, 875, 876, 877, 878, 879, 880, 881, 882, 883, 884, 885, 886, 887, 888, 889, 890, 891, 892, 893, 894, 895, 896, 897, 898, 899, 900, 901, 902, 903, 904, 905, 906, 907, 908, 909, 910, 911, 912, 913, 914, 915, 916, 917, 918, 919, 920, 921, 922, 923, 924, 925, 926, 927, 928, 929, 930, 931, 932, 933, 934, 935, 936, 937, 938, 939, 940, 941, 942, 943, 944, 945, 946, 947, 948, 949, 950, 951, 952, 953, 954, 955, 956, 957, 958, 959, 960, 961, 962, 963, 964, 965, 966, 967, 968, 969, 970, 971, 972, 973, 974, 975, 976, 977, 978, 979, 980, 981, 982, 983, 984, 985, 986, 987, 988, 989, 990, 991, 992, 993, 994, 995, 996, 997, 998, 999, 1000.